
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Turner-Smedley

AGENDA November 05, 2014

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Turner-Smedley

Presentation Chairman Jim Fields honoring the Constitution Essay winners.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - October 8, 2014

Minutes Agenda Session - October 8, 2014

Minutes Regular Meeting - October 15, 2014

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report September 2014

Report Trustee Monthly Report September 2014

Report Juvenile Court Clerk Report - June 2014

Report Juvenile Court Clerk Report  - July 2014

Report Juvenile Court Clerk Report  - August 2014

Res. No. 1114-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions.

Res. No. 1114-2 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of five members to the
Hamilton County Board of Examiners for Gas Fitters & Installers for terms ending November 5,
2018.

Res. No. 1114-3 A Resolution confirming the reappointment of six members by the County Mayor to the Hamilton
County Contractors Board of Appeals and Adjustments for terms ending November 5, 2018.

Res. No. 1114-4 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of one member to the
Emergency Communications District Board of Directors for term ending November 5, 2018.

Res. No. 1114-5 A Resolution to appoint members to the Hamilton County Audit Committee.

Res. No. 1114-6 A Resolution to appoint one (1) member and reappoint one (1) member to the Sheriff's Civil
Service Advisory Board for three (3) year terms beginning November 5, 2014 and ending
November 5, 2017.

Res. No. 1114-7 A Resolution accepting the bid of Mountain View Ford for one (1) cab & chassis for an animal
control unit amounting to $23,565.00 for the Hamilton County Humane Educational Society and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-8 A Resolution accepting the bid of Bowie International for one (1) animal control unit amounting to
$16,140.00 for the Hamilton County Humane Educational Society and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-9 A Resolution accepting the bid of CWC Office Furnishings for furniture for the Criminal Courts
amounting to $59,820.24 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-10 Resolution Number Not Used

Res. No. 1114-11 A Resolution for the Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department to scrap and sell a 1992 Ford Crown
Victoria VIN # 2FACP72W5NX252263 with mileage of 197,187 which is co-titled with Hamilton
County General Government.  Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department will use the proceeds of the
sell of the scrap for the future purchase of firefighting equipment.

Res. No. 1114-12 A Resolution for the Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department to scrap and sell a 1999 Dodge
Durango VIN # 1B4HS28Y3XF547576 with mileage of 188,000, which is co-titled with Hamilton
County General Government.  Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department will use the proceeds of the
sell of the scrap for the future purchase of firefighting equipment.



Res. No. 1114-13 A Resolution accepting the bids of Chattanooga Paper and Packaging, Inc., Moore Medical,
LLC, Midwest Medical Supply Company, LLC, McKesson Medical-Surgical, Inc., Buy Indian
Medical and Roll-Aid Industrial Supply for contract unit pricing, beginning November 7, 2014,
through November 6, 2015, for infection control supplies for the Chattanooga / Hamilton County
Health Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-14 A Resolution accepting the bid of Mac Papers for contract unit pricing, beginning November 7,
2014, through November 6, 2015, for paper and printing supplies for the Chattanooga / Hamilton
County Health Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-15 A Resolution accepting the bids of Staples Contract & Commercial, Inc. and Quill Corporation for
contract unit pricing, beginning November 7, 2014, through November 6, 2015, for general office
supplies for the Chattanooga / Hamilton County Health Department and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-16 A Resolution accepting the bids of Scientific Sales, Inc., McKesson Medical-Surgical, Inc.,
Moore Medical, LLC and Midwest Medical Supply Company, LLC  for contract unit pricing,
beginning November 7, 2014, through November 6, 2015, for laboratory supplies for the
Chattanooga / Hamilton County Health Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign
any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-17 A Resolution accepting the bids of Chattanooga Paper and Packaging, Quill Corporation,
Kelsan, Inc., and Roll-Aid Industrial Supply for contract unit pricing, beginning November 7,
2014, through November 6, 2015, for maintenance supplies for the Chattanooga / Hamilton
County Health Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-18 A Resolution accepting the bid of Battlefield Abatement for the Martin Luther King Building
asbestos abatement amounting to $30,210.50 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-19 A Resolution authorizing the slope stabilization repairs of Cash Canyon Road by
Geostabilization International on the State Contract for soil nailing for various Counties and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-20 A Resolution authorizing the slope stabilization repairs of Montlake Road by Geostabilization
International on the State Contract for soil nailing for various Counties and authorizing the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-21 A Resolution for the acceptance of a proposal by the Tennessee Department of Transportation
for the construction of SR-317 from SR-321 (Ooltewah-Ringgold Road) to near Layton Drive in
Hamilton County.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 

 
STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  October 8, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 8th day of October, 2014, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Boyd, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, 

Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Commissioner Beck was absent.  Total present - 8.  Total absent – 1. 

 

Chairman Fields reported that Commissioner Beck would not be in attendance 

for today’s meetings. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 1 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 

 
 Commissioner Boyd welcomed Mitch McClure, Pastor of Middle Valley Church of 

God and former County Commissioner, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Boyd 

led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

PRESENTATION – COUNTY TRUSTEE BILL HULLANDER HONORING 

EMPLOYEES 

 

 County Trustee Bill Hullander presented commemorative County seals and pins 

to members of his staff for their recent efforts to collect delinquent personalty taxes. 

These individuals included Chandler Catoe, Terri Ellis, and Gail Tucker. He reported 

that a total of 4,738 phone calls had been made by these ladies during the months of 

August and September. A total of $267,476 in back taxes from the previous ten years 

had been collected. He noted that these phone calls were often unpleasant to make and 

thanked his staff for their diligence. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger also expressed his appreciation to the Trustee and his staff for 

their service to the County and its taxpayers.       

 

 Members of the Commission personally thanked and shook hands with these 

individuals at this time. 

 

 2 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 

 
There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting 

adjourned.   

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

                                                                           _______________________________    
   William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
Approved: 
 
 
________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  October 8, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 8th day of October, 2014, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Boyd, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, 

Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Commissioner Beck was absent.  Total present - 8.  Total absent – 1. 

 

Chairman Fields reported during the Recessed Meeting that Commissioner Beck 

would not be in attendance for today’s meetings. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 

• An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

• An Order of Appointment to the Union Fork-Bakewell Utility District would be 
submitted as a matter of record. 

• Resolutions No. 1014-16 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, 
etc.  This required no committee assignment. 

• Resolutions No. 1014-17 through 1014-19 were assigned to the Finance 
Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 

• Resolutions No. 1014-20, 21, and 1014-23 through 1014-31 were assigned to the 
Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 

• Resolutions No. 1014-22, 1014-32, and 1014-33 were heard by a Committee of 
the Whole. 
 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1014-22 

 

 Mayor Coppinger noted this was a routine Resolution approved by the 

Commission each year granting leave time as an incentive to those making payroll 

contributions to the United Way. He pointed out that five winners would be selected to 

receive one leave day each, and not one employee receiving five days of leave. 

 

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1014-32 

 

 Public Works Administrator Todd Leamon spoke regarding this item, which would 

amend the distance requirement to be enforced in the granting of the right to sell beer 

by the package within the County from its present 750 feet of a church, school or other 

place of public gathering to 200 feet. He stated it was his understanding that the 

Resolution setting the distance requirement at 750 feet had been adopted in 1978. He 

noted that changing the requirement to 200 feet would make the County more 

consistent with municipalities in the area such as City of Chattanooga. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd cited instances where package stores were located within a 

close proximity to a school or park in the City of East Ridge. He stated his belief that 

there was adequate area in the County to develop that would not be so close to a public 

gathering place. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger noted that the County had been contacted in the past by multi-

purpose businesses considering growth in the area. It had been indicated to them that 

the 750 feet distance requirement of the County was significantly more stringent than 

area municipalities.  Making these policies uniform within Hamilton County would make 

it easier when enticing business to locate here. 

 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 
 

 Commissioner Graham stated that modern convenience stores selling beer by 

the package offered a number of other amenities to the community. He noted that any 

organization wishing to begin selling beer in the County would still require approval by 

the Beer Board and Regional Planning Agency if rezoning were required.  This 

Resolution would give them the ability to hear cases that met the new distance 

requirement.  He indicated his intent to support the Resolution next week. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1014-33 

 

 Attorney Taylor spoke regarding this Resolution, which would clarify the health 

insurance benefits available to County employees upon their retirement.  He stated that 

the Commission had previously adopted Resolution No. 392-15, which enumerated 

certain benefits to County employees once retired. He emphasized that Resolution No. 

1014-33 would in no way alter or amend the previous Resolution and was intended to 

provide clearer information. 

 

Attorney Taylor stated that all coverage for the retiree and/or their spouse would 

cease upon becoming eligible for Medicare.  He provided further detailed explanation of 

these health insurance benefits.   

 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 
 

 Upon questioning by Commissioner Fairbanks, Attorney Taylor responded that 

employees who did not qualify under these requirements would still be able to be 

covered under COBRA for 18 months. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger again emphasized that this Resolution would not make any 

changes to the current health benefits plan and was only intended to help clarify the 

language of the existing plan. If the Resolution were adopted by the Commission, he 

anticipated that the updated language would be used in the County employee 

handbook.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes again thanked Pastor McClure, who gave today’s 

invocation, for his many years of service throughout Hamilton County. 

 

Commissioner Mackey gave an account of last night’s National Night Out, a 

community event against crime. He noted he had been encouraged by the support of 

this event. 

 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 
 

Commissioner Graham spoke regarding a recent political candidates forum 

hosted by the Lookout Valley Neighborhood Association at the John A. Patten Center. 

He noted that a large community turnout was present as well some elected officials.  

 

Commissioner Graham invited everyone to attend the eighth annual auto show 

fundraiser hosted by the Lookout Valley Lions Club at the John A. Patten Recreation 

Center. The event would be held on Saturday, October 11. He noted that all funds 

raised were spent providing holiday food packages and Christmas gifts for needy 

Lookout Valley families. 

 

Commissioner Boyd made comments concerning Erlanger Hospital recently 

unveiling plans for improving their Children’s Hospital facility. He highlighted the 

importance of the Erlanger Hospital system to the region and encouraged everyone to 

support this initiative. 

 

Commissioner Bankston reported that the Humane Educational Society recently 

held a golf tournament fundraiser event on Saturday, October 4. He thanked everyone 

involved for their participation. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks congratulated the Sale Creek High School Lady 

Panthers volleyball team for winning their fifth straight District 6-A tournament earlier 

 6 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 
 

that week. Mayor Coppinger noted that HR Administrator Poe has a daughter on the 

team.  

 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley invited everyone to attend the annual Bark in the 

Park dog event at Heritage Park on Saturday, October 11.  

 

Mayor Coppinger reported that he had the opportunity to attend a portion of the 

entrepreneurial community event Startup Week, sponsored by the State of Tennessee.  

He noted that Hamilton County was the only county in the state to be selected for this 

event. 

 

Upon request by Mayor Coppinger, Health Services Administrator Becky Barnes 

gave the Commission a brief update regarding the Enterovirus D68 and Ebola viruses. 

She stated that there were no reported cases of either in the County and emphasized 

that they were not currently circulating in the United States. She noted that the County 

constantly made attempts to anticipate a wide variety of disease outbreaks and public 

health threats. Measures were currently being taken to increase surveillance and 

security in the community.  

 

Commissioner Mackey asked whether the County had a contingency plan if an 

instance of Ebola were reported.  Ms. Barnes indicated a plan was in place. 

 7 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 8, 2014 
 
 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

_______  
Date      Clerk’s Initials 

 
 

 8 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  October 15, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 15th day of October, 2014, a Regular Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, 

Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Commissioner Boyd was absent.  Total present - 8.  Total absent – 1.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

Commissioner Bankston introduced Pastor Joey Harris, Harmony Baptist 

Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Bankston led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of September 24, 2014, the Agenda 

Preparation Session of September 24, 2014, the Regular Meeting of October 1, 2014, 

be approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  The foregoing 

Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the 

County Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Boyd was absent.  Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total 

“Nay” votes – 0.   

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting of October 

13, 2014.  

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

 

ORDER OF APPOINTMENT 

 

 County Mayor Coppinger submitted for the record an Order appointing Samuel 

C. Petty to the Union Fork-Bakewell Utility District Board of Commissioners to serve a 

four-year term expiring May 6, 2018. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-16  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE OATH OF DEPUTY 

COUNTY CLERKS, THE OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS, THE OATH OF DEPUTY 

COUNTY TRUSTEES, AND THE BONDS OF APPOINTED OFFICIALS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1014-16.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-17  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-1 SINGLE 

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND R-5 SINGLE WIDE MANUFACTURED HOME 

DISTRICT TO A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 8150 & 

8154 STANDIFER GAP ROAD. 

 

Commissioner Haynes reported that after the Zoning Committee meeting last 

week, certain restrictions had been added to Resolution No. 1014-17.  He noted that 

Resolution No. 1014-17A and 1014-17B had been distributed to the Commission and 

Clerk’s office.  He added that it was the Committee’s recommendation that Resolution 

No. 1014-17B be approved.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-17A  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-1 SINGLE 

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND R-5 SINGLE WIDE MANUFACTURED HOME 

DISTRICT TO A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 8150 & 

8154 STANDIFER GAP ROAD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-17B  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-1 SINGLE 

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND R-5 SINGLE WIDE MANUFACTURED HOME 

DISTRICT TO A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 8150 & 

8154 STANDIFER GAP ROAD. 

 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1014-17B.   

 

Upon request by the applicant Jimmy Hydas, the conditions were read into the 

record at this time. These included 1) Residential and storage building/barn uses only. 

Outdoor storage only permitted per condition #3; 2) No livestock permitted; and 3) No 

outdoor storage permitted within 350 feet of Standifer Gap Road.  Mr. Hydas indicated it 

had been his understanding that the third condition had been that no outdoor storage 

permitted within 300 or 325 feet of Standifer Gap Road and not 350 feet. 

 

 Greg Haynes, with the Regional Planning Agency (RPA), reported that the 350 

foot distance had been calculated after measuring from the frontage of Standifer Gap 

Road to where the storage building would be built.  He indicated this distance could be 

adjusted if it was the desire of the Commission. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

amend Resolution No. 1014-17B with a condition that no outdoor storage would be 

permitted within 325 feet of Standifer Gap Road.   

 

 Commissioner Haynes asked whether there was any opposition present to 

today’s request. There was none. 

 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

The foregoing motion to amend Resolution No. 1014-17B was unanimously 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent.  Total 

present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Fields asked that the roll be called for the main motion at this time. 

 

The foregoing motion to adopt Resolution No. 1014-17B as amended was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent.  

Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Clerk Knowles requested that his office be provided with an amended copy of the 

Resolution.  Mr. Haynes indicated he would do so. 

 

 6 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-18  A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE ABANDONMENT OF 

AN UNOPENED ALLEY PARALLEL TO THE 5700 BLOCK OF HIGH STREET. 

 

Commissioner Haynes provided details regarding Resolutions No. 1014-18.  He 

reported that it had been recommended for approval by Regional Planning Agency staff 

and the Planning Commission.  He stated that hearing this matter last week, the Zoning 

Committee reviewed and initially recommended approval.  Since that time, he reported 

that there had been significant opposition from the public. He stated that based on this 

input, it was his recommendation to deny the request. He asked whether there was any 

opposition or support present regarding this case. There was none. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

reject Resolution No. 1014-18.  The foregoing Motion to reject the resolution was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent.  

Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 7 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-19  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-1 SINGLE 

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO C-1 TOURIST COURT AND MOTEL DISTRICT, 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3523 BANKS ROAD. 

 

Commissioner Haynes provided details regarding Resolutions No. 1014-19.  He 

reported that it had been denied by Regional Planning Agency staff and the Planning 

Commission.  He stated the Zoning Committee reviewed and recommended to deny 

Resolution No. 1014-19.   

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

reject Resolution No. 1014-19.   

 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley added that she had been contacted by the 

developer, who indicated it was not his intent to move forward with this project. 

 

Commissioner Haynes asked whether there was any opposition present 

regarding this matter. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Motion to reject the resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

 8 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent.  Total present – 8.  Total 

absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Fields asked that Resolutions No. 1014-20, 1014-21, and 1014-23 

through 1014-31 be considered at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-20  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A STATE OF 

TENNESSEE, GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY SAFETY OFFICE GRANT FOR THE “SAFE 

JOURNEY” PROJECT WITH A TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 

AMENDING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE OPERATING BUDGET BY ADDING 

$108,769.15 TO REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-21  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A STATE OF 

TENNESSEE, GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY SAFETY OFFICE GRANT FOR THE 

“REMOVE INTOXICATED AND IMPAIRED DRIVERS” PROJECT WITH A TERM 

ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND AMENDING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

OPERATING BUDGET BY ADDING $148,245 TO REVENUES AND 

EXPENDITURES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-23  A RESOLUTION FOR THE DALLAS BAY VOLUNTEER 

FIRE DEPARTMENT TO SCRAP AND SELL A WRECKED 2012 FORD F350 VIN # 

 9 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

1FD8W3H60CEA16441 WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH HAMILTON COUNTY 

GOVERNMENT. VEHICLE WAS TOTALED BY PHILADELPHIA INDEMNITY 

INSURANCE COMPANY. DALLAS BAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT WILL 

USE THE PROCEEDS OF SALE FOR THE PURCHASE OF SEARCH AND RESCUE 

EQUIPMENT AND FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-24  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RENEWAL OF THE 

CONTRACT WITH INTERNATIONAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC. FOR 

INSPECTING AND TESTING AUTOMATIC FIRE PROTECTION AND ALARM 

SYSTEMS IN COUNTY BUILDINGS FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR 

RENEWALS, AMOUNTING TO $21,952.77 ANNUALLY, FOR THE DEPARTMENT 

OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-25  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2014, 

THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-26  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

 10 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A CONTINUATION 

SUBCONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $156,000.00 WITH SOUTHSIDE/DODSON 

AVENUE COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS FOR THE PROVISION OF WOMEN, 

INFANTS AND CHILDREN (WIC) SERVICES FOR A 24 MONTH PERIOD TO 

INCLUDE OCTOBER 1, 2013 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2015. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-27  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT OF $416,700.00 TO PROVIDE SEXUALLY 

TRANSMITTED DISEASE AND HIV EDUCATION, PREVENTION AND CONTROL 

SERVICES IN HAMILTON COUNTY, FOR A TIME PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2015 

THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND DECREASE THE EXPENSE AND REVENUE 

BUDGETS BY $45,900.00. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-28  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT A GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $206,104.00 FROM 

THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

CONTINUING AND EXPANDING EXISTING SERVICES AT THE HOMELESS 

 11 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

HEALTH CARE CENTER AND TO AMEND THE REVENUE AND EXPENSE BUDGET 

BY $206,104.00. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-29  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MOUNTAIN 

VIEW FORD FOR ONE (1) 4X2 UTILITY VEHICLE AMOUNTING TO $22,023.00 FOR 

THE BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-30  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF TRIAD 

CORPORATION FOR CHESTER FROST PARK ELECTRICAL AND WATER 

UPGRADES AMOUNTING TO $1,129,576.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-31  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 

BULK DE-ICING SALT FROM MORTON SALT, INC. AMOUNTING TO $83.64 PER 

TON FROM THE STATE CONTRACT FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 12 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 1014-20, 

1014-21, and 1014-23 through 1014-31 and stated that the Finance Committee 

reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 1014-20, 1014-21, and 1014-23 through 1014-31.  The foregoing 

Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members 

of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner 

Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Boyd was absent.  Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-22  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO AWARD FIVE (5) DAYS OF PAID LEAVE FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

ENCOURAGING ALL HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEES TO PARTICIPATE IN THE 

UNITED WAY CAMPAIGN THROUGH PAYROLL DEDUCTION. 

 

 Chairman Fields reported that Resolution No. 1014-22 had been heard by a 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

 13 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1014-22.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; 

and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent.  Total present – 8.  Total 

absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-32  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE DISTANCE 

REQUIREMENT TO BE ENFORCED IN THE GRANTING OF THE RIGHT TO SELL 

BEER BY THE PACKAGE WITHIN HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, FROM ITS 

PRESENT 750 FEET OF A CHURCH, SCHOOL, OR OTHER PLACE OF PUBLIC 

GATHERING TO 200 FEET. 

 

Chairman Fields reported that Resolution No. 1014-32 had been heard by a 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1014-32.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

 14 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent.  Total present – 8.  Total 

absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-33  A RESOLUTION CLARIFYING THE HEALTH 

INSURANCE BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEES UPON 

THEIR RETIREMENT AS PREVIOUSLY PROMULGATED BY RESOLUTION NO. 

392-15, AS AMENDED. 

 

Chairman Fields reported that Resolution No. 1014-33 had been heard by a 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1014-33.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; 

and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was absent.  Total present – 8.  Total 

absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 15 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

Commissioner Graham emphasized that this Resolution did not make any 

changes to employee health insurance benefits and would simply provide further 

clarification on what was already offered. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes announced that a college bass fishing tournament would 

be held at Chester Frost Park this weekend. He stated that 45 different college teams 

would be competing.  He invited anyone interested to attend. 

 

Commissioner Mackey requested that information be presented to the 

Commission reflecting the precautions the County had taken to help prevent the spread 

of diseases such as Ebola. He stated this may be beneficial to the community. 

 

Mayor Coppinger responded that there was already an outstanding coordinated 

effort between local hospitals and health care workers throughout the region and the 

state.  He reported that he had recently been a part of a conference call with President 

Obama, his Chief of Staff Valerie Jarrett, as well as other local officials on the efforts 

that were being taken.  

 

 16 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

Health Services Administrator Becky Barnes provided additional information 

regarding this matter. She reported that there still were no reported cases of Ebola in 

Tennessee.  She stated that local hospital and Health Department staff was in daily 

contact with State and Center for Disease Control (CDC) officials to receive constantly 

updated communication.   

 

Ms. Barnes responded to further questioning by Commissioner Mackey regarding 

what measures were being taken. 

 

Commissioner Graham made comments regarding the eighth annual auto show 

fundraiser hosted by the Lookout Valley Lions Club at the John A. Patten Recreation 

Center. Due to recent inclement weather, the event had been rescheduled to be held on 

Saturday, November 8. He noted that all funds raised were spent providing holiday food 

packages and Christmas gifts for needy Lookout Valley families. 

 

Commissioner Graham reported that at a recent community meeting the Sheriff’s 

Department, Magistrates and other municipal police departments received praise from 

citizens for their assistance in identifying suspects in recent burglaries and taking quick 

action in securing warrants and making arrests against those persons responsible. 

Sheriff Hammond was present and expressed appreciation for the kind words. 

 

 17 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks reported that a fall festival would be held at North 

Hamilton County Elementary on Saturday, October 18 at 10:00 AM.  He noted that he 

would be participating in the dunk-tank activity to help raise funds for the school and 

encouraged everyone to attend. 

 

Attorney Taylor asked that members of the Commission meet with him for a brief 

legal meeting in the Mayor’s conference room immediately following adjournment of 

today’s meeting. 

 

Mayor Coppinger announced that early voting for the November 4 Election began 

today. 

 

Chairman Fields recognized School Board member Donna Horn, who was in 

attendance for today’s meeting. 

 

Chairman Fields informed the Commission that a Resolution would be submitted 

at the Recessed Meeting on Wednesday, October 22 regarding the Hamilton County 

Drug Court program.  He indicated this was a time-sensitive issue.  He reported that the 

responses to the bids for the Drug Court had been received on Monday, October 13 and 

were in the process of being reviewed.  

 

 18 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

 

It was noted the Commission would have the regularly scheduled recessed 

meeting and agenda session next Wednesday, October 22, at 9:30 am.  There would 

not be a meeting on the following Wednesday, October 29th due to the Tennessee 

County Services Association conference.  The next regular meeting would be held on 

Wednesday, November 5, 2014.   

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, October 22, 2014 at 9:30 AM.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 

 19 































No. 1114-1 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 
 
   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
 2. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



















No. 1114-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR 
OF FIVE MEMBERS TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR 
GAS FITTERS & INSTALLERS FOR TERMS ENDING NOVEMBER 5, 2018. 
 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 696-6, members of the Hamilton County Board of 

Examiners for Gas Fitters and Installers are appointed by the County Mayor 
and confirmed by the Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor has reappointed Kenneth C. Ra y (Mechanical Contractor), 

Emerson Ingram (Mechanical Contracting Industry), Thomas Raulston 
(Journeyman Gas Fitter), Beverly Johnson (Private Citizen), and Bennie Kinsey 
(Gas Company Representative), for terms of four years beginning November 5, 
2014 and ending November 5, 2018. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of K enneth C. Ra y, Emerson Ingram, Thomas Raulston, Beverly 
Johnson, and Bennie Kinsey to the Hamilton County Board of Examiners for Gas Fitters and 
Installers are hereby confirmed for terms as noted above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1114-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF SIX MEMBERS BY THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY CONTRACTORS BOARD OF 
APPEALS AND ADJUSTMENTS FOR TERMS ENDING NOVEMBER 5, 2018. 
 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1088-39, as amended by Resolution 696-7 

members of the Hamilton County Contractors Board of A ppeals and 
Adjustments are appointed by the County Mayor and confirmed by the Board 
of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor has reappointed Kim Ray, Dennis Hasting, James 

Shropshire, Charles W. Evans, Jr., Wendall Whitmire (Alternate No. 1), and 
Timothy McClure (Alternate No. 2) to four year terms beginning November 5, 
2014 and ending November 5, 2018. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of Kim Ray, Dennis Hasting, James Shropshire, Charles W. Evans, Jr., 
Wendall Whitmire (Alternate No. 1), and Timothy McClure (Alternate No. 2) to the Hamilton 
County Contractors Board of A ppeals and Adjustments are hereby confirmed for terms as 
noted above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1114-4 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR 
OF ONE MEMBER TO THE EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS FOR TERM ENDING NOVEMBER 5, 2018. 
 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 7-86-105(b)(1), members of 

the Hamilton County Emergency Communications District Board of Directors 
are appointed by the County Mayor and confirmed by the Board of Count y 
Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor reappoints Mark Mathews to a four y ear term, beginning 

November 5, 2014 and ending November 5, 2018; and, 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of Mark Mathews to the Hamilton County Emergency 
Communications District Board of Directors is hereby confirmed for the term as stated above; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1114-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY AUDIT 
COMMITTEE. 
  
WHEREAS, this county legislative body established an Audit Committee on March 

30, 2014, purs uant to Resolution No. 313-22, with those duties and 
responsibilities as enumerated in resolution; and,  

 
WHEREAS,  the resolution establishing the Audit Committee stated that the 

committee would consist of t hree (3) m embers to be comprised of 
members of the County Commission, and/or citizens of Hamilton 
County, or a combination of both as shall be appointed annually by the 
Chairman of County Commission and approved by vote of the County 
Commission; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Chairman Jim Fields has appointed Commissioner Warren Mackey, 

Commissioner Chester Bankston and himself to serve on t he Audit 
Committee until September 30, 2015. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the appointments of Chairman Jim Fields, Commissioner Chester Bankston and  
Commissioner Warren Mackey to the Hamilton County Audit Committee, for a term 
ending September 30, 2015, are hereby approved. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 1114-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT ONE (1) MEMBER AND REAPPOINT ONE (1) 
MEMBER TO THE SHERIFF’S CIVIL SERVICE ADVISORY BOARD FOR THREE 
(3) YEAR TERMS BEGINNING NOVEMBER 5, 2014 AND ENDING NOVEMBER 5, 
2017.  
  
WHEREAS, T.C.A. Section 8-8-404 provides for the creation of a Sheriff’s Civil 

Service Advisory Board composed of three (3) members selected by the 
County legislative body; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 401-38 specifies the manner in which the appointments will 

be made; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioners representing Districts 4, 5, and 6 w ish to appoint 

Bruce O’Neal for a three (3) year term ending November 5, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioners representing Districts 7, 8, and 9 wish to reappoint 

John K. “Bucky” McCulley for a three (3) year term ending November 
5, 2017. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Bruce O’Neal is hereby appointed and John K. “Bucky” McCulley is hereby reappointed 
to the Sheriff’s Civil Service Advisory Board for three (3) year terms beginning November 5, 
2014 and ending November 5, 2017. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



Bruce G. O’Neal is a native of Chattanooga. He retired from State Farm 
Insurance Company after 35 years of service. He headed numerous 
initiatives and held numerous positions including Field Trainer for the 
Catastrophe Services/Performance Support Division on State Farm. He 
attended Grambling State University and the University of Chattanooga 
where he studied Business Administration. He’s Currently the Owner 
and General Manager of Atlas Global Properties and Campaign Manager 
for Commissioner Warren Mackey’s re-election campaign. He has 
served on the board of Pro Re Bona Day Care Center and he’s a member 
of the American Society of Training and Development. Bruce is a 
member of New United Baptist Church. He enjoys golf, fishing, tennis, 
cycling, learning to play the guitar and spending time with family and 
friends. After 21 years of marriage his wife, Consuelo “Connie” O’Neal 
was called home. Bruce lives in the Shepard area of Chattanooga. They 
have two children, Aubrey Bray Brooks and Bettina Kristyn Benson and 
one grandchild (Chloe Kristyn Benson). 



No. 1114-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MOUNTAIN VIEW FORD FOR ONE (1) 
CAB & CHASSIS FOR AN ANIMAL CONTROL UNIT AMOUNTING TO $23,565.00 
FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY HUMANE EDUCATIONAL SOCIETY AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) ¾ ton cab 

& chassis for an animal control unit for the Hamilton County Humane 
Educational Society; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Mountain View Ford amounting to $23,565.00 was considered 

to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Mountain View Ford for one (1) cab and chassis for an animal control unit 
amounting to $23,565.00 for t he Hamilton County Humane Educational Society is hereby 
accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to 
sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 























No. 1114-8 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BOWIE INTERNATIONAL FOR ONE (1) 
ANIMAL CONTROL UNIT AMOUNTING TO $16,140.00 FOR THE HAMILTON 
COUNTY HUMANE EDUCATIONAL SOCIETY AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) animal 

control unit for the Hamilton County Humane Educational Society; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Bowie International amounting to $16,140.00 was considered to 

be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Bowie International for one (1) animal control unit amounting to $16,140.00 
for the Hamilton County Humane Educational Society is hereby accepted, said bid being the 
lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



































No. 1114-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CWC OFFICE FURNISHINGS FOR 
FURNITURE FOR THE CRIMINAL COURTS AMOUNTING TO $59,820.24 A ND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for office furniture for 

the Criminal Courts; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this contract unit pricing will allow other departments to buy off contract for 

twelve months; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the bid from CWC Office Furnishings amounting to $59,820.24 was 

considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of CWC Office Furnishings for furni ture for the Criminal Courts amounting to 
$59,820.24 is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing 
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 































No. 1114-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION FOR THE MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT TO SCRAP 
AND SELL A 1992 FORD CROWN VICTORIA VIN # 2FACP72W5NX252263 WITH 
MILEAGE OF 197,187 WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH HAMILTON COUNTY GENERAL 
GOVERNMENT.  MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT WILL USE THE 
PROCEEDS OF THE SELL OF THE SCRAP FOR THE FUTURE PURCHASE OF 
FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT. 
 
WHEREAS,    THE 1992 FORD CROWN VICTORIA VIN # 2FACP72W5NX252263    
  WITH MILEAGE OF 197,187; AND, 
 
WHEREAS,    THE MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT DESIRES THAT 
   SAID VEHICLE WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH HAMILTON COUNTY 
   GENERAL GOVERNMENT WHICH IS BEYOND REPAIR BE SOLD AS 
   SCRAP; AND, 
 
WHEREAS,     THAT SAID MONIES FROM THE SELL OF SCRAP OF THE VEHICLE 
   BE UTILIZED TO PURCHASE FUTURE FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Hamilton County’s interest in said beyond repair and co-titled vehicle with Mowbray 
Volunteer Fire Department be terminated so the vehicle may be scraped and sold in a 
reasonable manner and proceeds to be applied to the purchase of future firefighting equipment 
by Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
  
                  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1114-12 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLOUTION FOR THE MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT TO 
SCRAP AND SELL A 1999 DODGE DURANGO VIN # 1B4HS28Y3XF547576 WITH 
MILEAGE OF 188,000 WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH HAMILTON COUNTY GENERAL 
GOVERNMENT.  MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT WILL USE THE 
PROCEEDS OF THE SELL OF THE SCRAP FOR THE FUTURE PURCHASE OF 
FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT. 
 
WHEREAS, THE 1999 DODGE DURANGE VIN 1B4HS28Y3XF547576 WITH  
  MILEAGE OF 188,000; AND, 
 
WHEREAS, THE MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT DESIRES THAT 
  SAID VEHICLE WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH HAMILTON COUNTY 
  GENERAL GOVERNMENT WHICH IS BEYOND REPAIR BE SOLD AS 
  SCRAP; AND, 
 
WHEREAS,  THAT SAID MONIES FROM THE SELL OF SCRAP OF THE VEHICLE BE 
  UTILIZED TO PURCHASE FUTURE FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Hamilton County’s interest in beyond repair and co-titled vehicle with Mowbray 
Volunteer Fire Department be terminated so the vehicle may be scrapped and sold in a 
reasonable manner and proceeds to be applied to the purchase of future firefighting equipment 
by Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1114-13 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF CHATTANOOGA PAPER AND PACKAGING, 
INC., MOORE MEDICAL, LLC, MIDWEST MEDICAL SUPPLY COMPANY, LLC, McKESSON 
MEDICAL-SURGICAL, INC., BUY INDIAN MEDICAL AND ROLL-AID INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY 
FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2014, THROUGH NOVEMBER 
6, 2015, FOR INFECTION CONTROL SUPPLIES FOR THE CHATTANOOGA / HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1)year contract unit 

pricing for infection control supplies for the Health Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Chattanooga Paper and Packaging, Inc., Moore Medical, LLC, 

Midwest Medical Supply Company, LLC, McKesson Medical-Surgical, Inc., Buy 
Indian Medical, and Roll-Aid Industrial Supply were considered to be the lowest and 
best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Chattanooga Paper and Packaging, Inc., Moore Medical, LLC, Midwest Medical 
Supply Company, LLC, McKesson Medical-Surgical, Inc., Buy Indian Medical, and Roll-Aid 
Industrial Supply for contract unit pricing, beginning November 7, 2014, through November 6, 2015, 
for infection control supplies for the Chattanooga/Hamilton County Health Department are hereby 
accepted, said bids being the lowest and best overall bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor 
to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 





























No. 1114-14 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MAC PAPERS FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, 
BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2014, THROUGH NOVEMBER 6, 2015, FOR PAPER AND 
PRINTING SUPPLIES FOR THE CHATTANOOGA / HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract unit 

pricing for paper and printing supplies for the Health Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Mac Papers was the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Mac Papers for contract unit pricing, beginning November 7, 2014, through November 
6, 2015, for paper and printing supplies for the Chattanooga/Hamilton County Health Department is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to 
sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



























No. 1114-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL, INC. 
AND QUILL CORPORATION FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 
2014, THROUGH NOVEMBER 6, 2015, FOR GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES FOR THE 
CHATTANOOGA / HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract unit 

pricing for general office supplies for the Health Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Staples Contract & Commercial, Inc. and Quill Corporation were the 

lowest and best over all bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Staples Contract & Commercial, Inc. and Quill Corporation for contract unit pricing, 
beginning November 7, 2014, through November 6, 2015, for general office supplies for the 
Chattanooga/Hamilton County Health Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and 
best over all bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 

































No. 1114-16 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SCIENTIFIC SALES, INC., McKESSON 
MEDICAL-SURGICAL, INC., MOORE MEDICAL, LLC AND MIDWEST MEDICAL SUPPLY 
COMPANY, LLC  FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2014, 
THROUGH NOVEMBER 6, 2015, FOR LABORATORY SUPPLIES FOR THE CHATTANOOGA / 
HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 
TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract unit 

pricing for laboratory supplies for the Health Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Scientific Sales, Inc., McKesson Medical-Surgical, Inc., Moore 

Medical, LLC and Midwest Medical Supply Company, LLC. were considered to be 
the lowest and best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Scientific Sales, Inc., McKesson Medical-Surgical, Inc., Moore Medical, LLC and 
Midwest Medical Supply Company, LLC. for contract unit pricing, beginning November 7, 2014, 
through November 6, 2015, for laboratory supplies for the Chattanooga/Hamilton County Health 
Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 





























No. 1114-17 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF CHATTANOOGA PAPER AND PACKAGING,   
QUILL CORPORATION, KELSAN, INC., AND ROLL-AID INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY FOR 
CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2014, THROUGH NOVEMBER 6, 
2015, FOR MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES FOR THE CHATTANOOGA / HAMILTON COUNTY 
HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract unit 

pricing for maintenance supplies for the Health Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Chattanooga Paper and Packaging, Quill Corporation, Kelsan, Inc., and 

Roll-Aid Industrial Supply were the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Chattanooga Paper and Packaging, Quill Corporation, Kelsan, Inc., and Roll-Aid 
Industrial Supply for contract unit pricing, beginning November 7, 2014, through November 6, 2015, 
for maintenance supplies for the Chattanooga/Hamilton County Health Department are hereby 
accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign 
any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



























No. 1114-18 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BATTLEFIELD ABATEMENT FOR THE 
MARTIN LUTHER KING BUILDING ASBESTOS ABATEMENT AMOUNTING TO 
$30,210.50 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for asbestos abatement 

in the Martin Luther King Building for the Engineering Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Battlefield Abatement amounting to $30,210.50 was considered 

to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Battlefield Abatement for the Martin Luther King Building asbestos abatement 
amounting to $30,210.50 is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, 
and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 









No. 1114-19 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SLOPE STABILIZATION REPAIRS OF CASH CANYON 
ROAD BY GEOSTABILIZATION INTERNATIONAL ON THE STATE CONTRACT FOR SOIL 
NAILING FOR VARIOUS COUNTIES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
WHEREAS, Cash Canyon Road in Hamilton County has exhibited an area measuring 

approximately 105 linear feet which requires slope stabilization along the roadway to 
preserve the existing road platform.  The slope stabilization repairs require specialized 
geotechnical design and construction methods that can be provided by 
GeoStabilization International; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the price for the slope stabilization repairs from the State contract is $165,990.00; and, 
 
WHEREAS, utilizing GeoStabilization International from the State Contract is the most feasible and 

economical means of providing the needed slope stabilization repairs; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available for this improvement in the County’s line of credit. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the slope stabilization repairs in the amount of $165,990.00 for Cash Canyon Road by 
GeoStabilization International utilizing the State Contract is hereby approved, being the best and most 
economical source, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement 
this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



GEOHAZARD MITIGATION EXPERTS

	  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Updated September 12, 2014 
Mr. Todd Leamon, John Agan, & Harold Austin   
Hamilton County 
Region I – Bureau of Operations 
7345 Region Lane         Phone: 865-594-2705 
Knoxville, TN 37901       
 
Subject:   Proposal for Slope Stabilization, Cash Canyon Road –Slide Area 

Hamilton County, TN – Based On State of Tennessee Statewide Annual Contract 
GeoStabilization International (GSI) Vendor ID:  0000160610 
Contract Number:  0000000000000000000042295 
Title:  SWC #191:  Soil Nailing Service 

  
Dear Mr. Leamon, Mr. Agan and Mr. Austin:  
 
GeoStabilization International® (GSI®) is pleased to offer this proposal to provide permanent stabilization to 
preserve the existing road platform at the slide area located along Cash Canyon Road in Hamilton County, 
Tennessee.  This proposal and pricing is based on our Statewide Contract with the State of Tennessee for Soil 
Nailing Service, which is available for Hamilton County to utilize to procure these services. 
 
Project Overview   
  
This proposal addresses installing a combination of Self Drilling Soil Nails and Shotcrete to provide stabilization 
for the road platform along Cash Canyon Road located in Hamilton County, TN at the GPS Coordinates shown 
below.  The limits of this repair area, as of today’s date, are 105 linear feet (LF) for this slide area.  This proposed 
repair length was marked in the field by GSI on August 5, 2014. 
 

 
 

   J. Reid Bailey, PE – 423.619.8576 
Email: reid@gsi.us 

P: 970.210.6170 | F: 970.245.7737 
www.geostabilization.com 

	  



Cash Canyon Road, Hamilton County, TN - Slope Stabilization –PAGE 2 OF 4	  

 
Slide Area 

	  

 
 

 
 
Slide Repairs 
 
GSI will use a trackhoe to remove vegetation and soils for this project.  
 
GSI will then install Nails, Self Drilling, up to 30 ft, Group 1.  We will leave the nail ends protruding through the 
soil slope as shown in the sketch below.  We will then cover the repair areas with steel reinforced Shotcrete.    The 
following Sketches show a general profile view of both slope repair areas.  Actual nail lengths will vary and 
additional stability measures may be required below our repair area.   
 
 
 
Sketch below is as facing Slide #1 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Sta.	  0+00	   Sta.	  1+05	  

10’	  30’	  Self	  Drillers	  Horizontal	  
and	  Vertical	  &	  Shotcrete	  
with	  A-‐Wall	  Construction	  

105’	  Total	  



Cash Canyon Road, Hamilton County, TN - Slope Stabilization –PAGE 3 OF 4	  

 
Cost for Stabilization of Slide #1 
 

Description ~ Qty Unit Unit Price Total 

Mobilization        1 LS $  10,500  $        10,500 

Nails, Self Drilling Soil, up to 30 ft, Group 1    108 EA $ 750 $         81,000 

Shotcrete, 12” Thickness, Group 1   1050 SF $    28.00 $         29,400 

Allowance for Grading, Erosion Control, Engineered 
Backfill, and Traffic Flaggers @ Cost Plus 15% 

   1 Cost 
+ 
15% 

$ 30,000 $          30,000 

Subtotal    $        150,900 

Contingency Allowance 10% of Project Costs 1 10% $ 15,090 $          15,090 

Total    $       165,990 

 
 
Hamilton County will need to provide the items listed below in the yellow highlighted area under Resources. It is 
anticipated that Hamilton County will need to shut down the road for the proposed repairs.  GSI will work with 
Hamilton County to achieve the appropriate slope geometry for the repair areas.   
 
 
Resources  
 
Items to be Provided By Hamilton County: 
 

! Right-of-way space where available to receive and unload materials shipped by GSI, and an area to park 
our equipment. 

! Installation of Guardrail. 
! Once the slide area has been stabilized, Hamilton County should assess milling, pavement resurfacing, 

and first phase and permanent striping in the repair area. 
! Traffic control for the duration of work. 

 
 
 
Our equipment is mounted on trackhoes allowing the work to be accomplished from the road platform.  This work 
zone shall be provided and protected by Hamilton County forces.  We will park our equipment off the road and 
near the site during non-working hours.   
 
 
Schedule 
 
Barring unforeseen delays, this project can begin as early as October 1, 2014 and should take approximately 20 
working days to complete. The schedules are based on GSI working 5 day work weeks during daylight hours for 
the slide repairs, and Monday – Friday. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Cash Canyon Road, Hamilton County, TN - Slope Stabilization –PAGE 4 OF 4	  

Other  
 
Our price also includes design and we will supply a Tennessee P.E. stamped typical section. Our work also carries 
a seven-year warranty commencing after GSI project completion for permanent installations.  This warranty is 
void absent GSI receiving mutually agreed project payment. If at any point within the warranty period the repaired 
section becomes unstable, GSI will, in a timely manner, remedy the situation with a design/construction solution at 
no cost to the owner. This warranty does not cover work completed by others or shallow surface erosion problems 
that may develop in the future. Exceptions to the warranty include catastrophic seismic, weather, or other events 
outside reasonable accounting in design (including earthquakes and weather events exceeding expectation for the 
region) or further construction by third parties that destabilizes the repair (including utility trenches dug into or 
through any soil nails, deep excavations in the area, etc). Extreme storm water volumes may cause erosion which 
could undermine the repaired areas which may void this warranty. After such an event these areas should be 
checked for erosion.  
   
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me at the 423-619-8576 or via e-mail at reid@gsi.us.  
 
 
GeoStabilization International 
 
 
 
By: J. Reid Bailey, PE 
Senior Engineer 
 



No. 1114-20 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SLOPE STABILIZATION REPAIRS OF MONTLAKE 
ROAD BY GEOSTABILIZATION INTERNATIONAL ON T HE STATE CONTRACT FOR SOIL 
NAILING FOR VARIOUS COUNTIES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, Montlake Road in Hamilton County has exhibited an area measuring 88 linear feet 

which requires slope stabilization along the roadway to preserve the existing road 
platform.  The slope stabilization repairs require specialized geotechnical design and 
construction methods that can be provided by GeoStabilization International; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the price for the slope stabilization repairs from the State contract is $173,525.00; and,  
 
WHEREAS, utilizing GeoStabilization International from the State Contract is the most feasible and 

economical means of providing the needed slope stabilization repairs; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available for this improvement in the County’s line of credit. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the slope stabilization repairs in the amount of $173,525.00 by GeoStabilization International 
utilizing the State Contract is hereby approved, being the best and most economical source, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 



GEOHAZARD MITIGATION EXPERTS

	  

 
 
 
 
 
 

September 17, 2014 
Mr. Todd Leamon, John Agan, & Harold Austin   
Hamilton County 
Region I – Bureau of Operations 
7345 Region Lane         Phone: 865-594-2705 
Knoxville, TN 37901       
 
Subject:   Proposal for Slope Stabilization, Montlake Road–Above Road Slide Area 

Hamilton County, TN – Based On State of Tennessee Statewide Annual Contract 
GeoStabilization International (GSI) Vendor ID:  0000160610 
Contract Number:  0000000000000000000042295 
Title:  SWC #191:  Soil Nailing Service 

  
Dear Mr. Leamon, Mr. Agan and Mr. Austin:  
 
GeoStabilization International® (GSI®) is pleased to offer this proposal to provide permanent stabilization to the 
above road slide area located along Montlake Road in Hamilton County, Tennessee.  This proposal and pricing is 
based on our Statewide Contract with the State of Tennessee for Soil Nailing Service, which is available for 
Hamilton County to utilize to procure these services. 
 
Project Overview   
  
This proposal addresses installing a combination of Permanently Cased Soil Nails and Shotcrete to provide 
stabilization to the above road slide area along Montlake Road located in Hamilton County, TN at the GPS 
Coordinates shown below.  The limits of this repair area, as of today’s date, are 88 linear feet (LF) for this slide 
area.  This proposed repair length was measured in the field by GSI on September 8, 2014. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   J. Reid Bailey, PE – 423.619.8576 
Email: reid@gsi.us 

P: 970.210.6170 | F: 970.245.7737 
www.geostabilization.com 

	  



Montlake Road, Hamilton County, TN – Above Road Slope Stabilization –PAGE 2 OF 4	  

Slide Area 
	  

 
 

 
Slide Repairs 
 
GSI will use a trackhoe to remove vegetation, riprap and soils for this project.  
 
GSI will then install Nails, Permanently Cased, up to 20 ft.  We will leave the nail ends protruding through the soil 
slope as shown in the sketch below.  We will then cover the repair areas with steel reinforced Shotcrete.    The 
following sketch overlay shows a general profile view of the above road slope repair area.  Actual nail lengths will 
vary and horizontal drains may be needed.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Montlake Road, Hamilton County, TN – Above Road Slope Stabilization –PAGE 3 OF 4	  

 
 
 
Cost for Stabilization of Above Road Slide 
 

Description ~ Qty Unit Unit Price Total 

Mobilization        1 LS $  10,500  $        10,500 

Limited Access Crew Mobilization (2nd Mobilization)       1 LS $  5,250  $          5,250 

Nails, Permanently Cased Soil, up to 20 ft    80 EA $ 500 $         40,000 

Shotcrete, 8” Thickness   2760 SF $    25.00 $         69,000 

Allowance for Grading, Erosion Control, Drainage 
Swale, and Traffic Flaggers @ Cost Plus 15% 

   1 Cost 
+ 
15% 

$33,000 $          33,000 

Subtotal    $        157,750 

Contingency Allowance 10% of Project Costs 1 10% $ 15,775 $         15,775 

Total    $       173,525 

 
 
Hamilton County will need to provide the items listed below in the yellow highlighted area under Resources. It is 
anticipated that Hamilton County will need to shut down the road for the proposed repairs.  GSI will work with 
Hamilton County to achieve the appropriate slope geometry for the repair areas.   
 
 
Resources  
 
Items to be Provided By Hamilton County: 
 

! Right-of-way space where available to receive and unload materials shipped by GSI, and an area to park 
our equipment. 

! Installation of Guardrail or Barrier Rail if required. 
! Once the slide area has been stabilized, Hamilton County should assess milling, pavement resurfacing, 

and first phase and permanent striping in the repair area. 
! Traffic cones and or barrels and set limits of traffic control 

 
 
 
Our equipment is mounted on trackhoes allowing the work to be accomplished from the road platform.  This work 
zone shall be provided and protected by Hamilton County forces.  We will park our equipment off the road and 
near the site during non-working hours.   
 
 
Schedule 
 
Barring unforeseen delays, this project can begin as early as November 3, 2014 and should take approximately 15 
working days to complete. The schedules are based on GSI working 5 day work weeks during daylight hours for 
the slide repairs, and Monday – Friday. 
 
 



Montlake Road, Hamilton County, TN – Above Road Slope Stabilization –PAGE 4 OF 4	  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Other  
 
Our price also includes design and we will supply a Tennessee P.E. stamped typical section. Our work also carries 
a seven-year warranty commencing after GSI project completion for permanent installations.  This warranty is 
void absent GSI receiving mutually agreed project payment. If at any point within the warranty period the repaired 
section becomes unstable, GSI will, in a timely manner, remedy the situation with a design/construction solution at 
no cost to the owner. This warranty does not cover work completed by others or shallow surface erosion problems 
that may develop in the future. Exceptions to the warranty include catastrophic seismic, weather, or other events 
outside reasonable accounting in design (including earthquakes and weather events exceeding expectation for the 
region) or further construction by third parties that destabilizes the repair (including utility trenches dug into or 
through any soil nails, deep excavations in the area, etc). Extreme storm water volumes may cause erosion which 
could undermine the repaired areas which may void this warranty. After such an event these areas should be 
checked for erosion.  
   
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me at the 423-619-8576 or via e-mail at reid@gsi.us.  
 
 
GeoStabilization International 
 
 
 
By: J. Reid Bailey, PE 
Senior Engineer 
 



No. 1114-21 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 5, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF A PROPOSAL BY THE 
TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION 
OF SR-317 FROM SR-321 (OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD) TO NEAR LAYTON 
DRIVE IN HAMILTON COUNTY. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) proposes to 

construct SR-317 from SR-321 (Ooltewah-Ringgold Road) to near 
Layton Drive, designated as State Project No. 33070-2233-14; and, 

 
 
WHEREAS, following the acceptance of the proposal, TDOT will acquire the right-of-

way and easements, construct the project, and defend any inverse 
condemnation or damage civil actions. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners accepts the proposal from the 
Tennessee Department of Transportation for the construction of SR-317 from SR-321 
(Ooltewah-Ringgold Road) to near Layton Drive. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 5, 2014 

  
Date 

 












	11-5-14 Public Agenda
	1114-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - October 8, 2014 _1184_10-08-14 Recessed
	1114-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - October 8 2014 _1185_10-08-14 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	1114-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - October 15 2014 _1204_10-15-14 Regular
	DELEGATIONS

	1114-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report September 2014_1186_September 2014 Trustee Excess Fee Report
	1114-_S_Minutes_Trustee Monthly Report September 2014_1187_September 2014 Trustee Monthly Report
	1114-_S_Gary Behler_Juvenile Court Clerk Report June 2014_1176_1114-_S_Juvenile Court Clerk Report_June 2014
	1114-_S_Gary Behler_Juvenile Court Clerk Report  July 2014_1182_Juvenile Court Clerk Report July 2014
	1114-_S_Gary Behler_Juvenile Court Clerk Report - August 2014_1183_Juvenile Court Clerk Report - August 2014
	1114-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1206_11-05-14
	1114-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1206_11-05-14 A
	1114-2_R_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of five members to the Hamilton County Board of Examiners for Gas Fitters & Installers._1200_Reappointment Five Members to Board of Examiners
	1114-3_R_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of six members to the Hamilton County Contractors Board of Appeals and Adjustments._1199_Reappointment Six Member to Contractors Board of Appeals
	1114-4_R_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of one member to the Emergency Communications District Board._1198_Reappointment One Member to Emerg Communications Dist Brd of Dirs
	1114-5_R_Appointment(s)_The Hamilton County Audit Committee._1181_Resolution to Appointment  Members to Hamilton County Audit Committee
	1114-6_R_Appointment(s)_The Sheriff's Civil Service Advisory Board_1209_Sheriff's Civil Service Advisory Board
	1114-6_S_Appointment(s)_The Sheriff's Civil Service Advisory Board_1209_Bruce G. O'Neal Biography
	1114-7_R_County Mayor_Cab and Chassis for an Animal Control Unit_1177_RES. CAB & CHASSIS FOR ANIMAL CONTROL UNIT 11-5-14
	1114-7_S_County Mayor_Cab and Chassis for an Animal Control Unit_1177_Cab & Chassis for Animal Control Unit
	1114-8_R_County Mayor_Animal Control Unit_1178_RES. ANIMAL CONTROL UNIT
	1114-8_S_County Mayor_Animal Control Unit_1178_Animal Control Unit
	1114-9_R_Judge Steelman_Furniture for Criminal Courts_1192_RES. CRIMINAL COURT FURNITURE
	1114-9_S_Judge Steelman_Furniture for Criminal Courts_1192_CRIMINAL COURT FURNITURE
	1114-11_R_Don Allen_Release of Co Titled Vehicle_1197_Mowbray
	1114-12_R_Don Allen_Release of Co Titled Vehicle_1202_1999 Dodge Durango
	1114-13_R_Becky Barnes_Infection Control Supplies Contract_1170_RES. INFECTION CONTROL SUPPLIES CONTRACT 11-5-14
	1114-13_S_Becky Barnes_Infection Control Supplies Contract_1170_Infection Control Contract
	1114-14_R_Becky Barnes_Paper and Printing Supplies Contract_1171_RES. PAPER & PRINTING SUPPLIES CONTRACT
	1114-14_S_Becky Barnes_Paper and Printing Supplies Contract_1171_Paper & Printing Supplies Contract
	1114-15_R_Becky Barnes_General Office Supplies Contract_1172_RES. GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES CONTRACT 11-5-14
	1114-15_S_Becky Barnes_General Office Supplies Contract_1172_General Office Supplies Contract
	1114-16_R_Becky Barnes_Laboratory Supplies Contract_1173_RES. LABORATORY SUPPLIES CONTRACT 11-5-14
	1114-16_S_Becky Barnes_Laboratory Supplies Contract_1173_Laboratory Supplies Contract
	1114-17_R_Becky Barnes_Maintenance Supplies Contract_1175_RES. MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES CONTRACT
	1114-17_S_Becky Barnes_Maintenance Supplies Contract_1175_Maintenance Supplies Contract
	1114-18_R_Todd Leamon_Martin Luther King Building Asbestos Abatement_1193_RES. ABESTOS ABATEMENT AT MLK BUILDING
	1114-18_S_Todd Leamon_Martin Luther King Building Asbestos Abatement_1193_Asbestos Abatement for MLK Building
	1114-19_R_Todd Leamon_Slope Stabilization of Cash Canyon Road_1194_cerpresolution
	1114-19_S_Todd Leamon_Slope Stabilization Cash Canyon Road_1194_attachment for resolution -Cash Canyon Road - Roadway Slope Stabilization Final Proposal - 09-12-14
	1114-20_R_Todd Leamon_Slope_Stablization fpr Montlake Road
	1114_20_S_Todd Leamon_Slope Stablizaton for Montlake Road
	1114-21_R_Todd Leamon_TDOT proposal_1205_TDOT SR 317 Acceptance final
	1114-21_S_Todd Leamon_TDOT proposal_1205_SR 317 Proposal TDOT

